
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 
 
 1220 Lakeway Drive (360) 734-9224 
 Bellingham, WA, 98229 Fax 738-8250 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: June 2, 2022 

RE: Virtual Meeting Attendance  

For the foreseeable future, Lake Whatcom Water & Sewer District’s Board of Commissioners will be 
attending regular meetings by phone/video conference. Per Governor Inslee’s Proclamation No. 20-28.3, 
the District will provide access to interested public via phone/internet utilizing the GoToMeeting 
platform.  

Attending a Meeting 

If you would like to attend the June 8, 2022 
regular board meeting, access details can be 
found below. In this evolving climate, we are 
committed to doing everything possible to 
provide opportunity for public comment as well 
as promote health and safety. As such, the 
District requests that if possible, public submit 
comments in written form by noon the day 
before a scheduled meeting for inclusion in the 
meeting discussion. This is not a requirement 
for making a public comment, but is helpful to 
the staff and commissioners for planning 
purposes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attending as an Observer only 

If you wish to observe a meeting, but do not 
plan to speak or appear on video during the 
meeting, you may attend anonymously.  

When you click the link to log in to the meeting, 
a black box will appear like the one pictured 
below. Click the pencil icon (circled) and change 
your name to “Observe Only.” Also make sure 
that your microphone and camera icon are grey 
and not green. You will be muted by the 
meeting administrator and will not be included 
in the roll call.  

 

June 08, 2022  Regular Board Meeting 
Wed, June 08, 2022 6:30 PM – 8:30 PM (PST) 
 
Join the meeting from your computer, tablet or 
smartphone. 

https://meet.goto.com/740594949 
 
You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States: +1 (408) 650-3123 
 
Access Code: 740-594-949 
 
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready 
when the meeting starts: 
https://meet.goto.com/install 
 

We appreciate your understanding and patience during these uncertain times.  
If you have any questions, please contact Administrative Assistant  

Rachael Hope at rachael.hope@lwwsd.org or 360-734-9224. 

 

Page 1 of 201

https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/proclamations/20-28.3%20-%20COVID-19%20Open%20Govt%20Waivers%20Ext%20%28tmp%29.pdf
https://meet.goto.com/740594949
tel:+15713173112,,315637237
https://meet.goto.com/install
mailto:rachael.hope@lwwsd.org


 

  
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

1220 Lakeway Drive 
Bellingham, WA  98229 

 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA 

June 8, 2022 
6:30 p.m. – Regular Session 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. CONFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REMOTE MEETING ATTENDANCE PROTOCOLS 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT OPPORTUNITY 

At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Commissioners. Please state 
your name prior to making comments. 

 
5. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
7. SPECIFIC ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

A. Eagleridge Booster Conversion Project Discussion 
 
8. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
9. STAFF REPORTS 

A. General Manager 
 
10. PUBLIC COMMENT OPPORTUNITY 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 201



 

  
 

Consent Agenda 
 

DATE SUBMITTED:  June 02, 2022 MEETING DATE: June 08, 2022 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM:  Rachael Hope 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 1. See below 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONAL

/OTHER 
 

**TO BE UPDATED 06.08.2022** 
 
BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 

• Minutes for the May 11, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

• Minutes for the May 25, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

• Minutes for the May 26, 2022 Special Board Meeting 

• Payroll for Pay Period #11 (5/14/2022 through 05/27/2022) totaling $47,931.41 

• Payroll Benefits for Pay Period #11 totaling $53,748.86 

• Accounts Payable Vouchers total to be added 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Fiscal impact is as indicated in the payroll/benefits/accounts payable quantities defined 
above. All costs are within the Board-approved 2022 Budget. 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
Staff recommends the Board approve the Consent Agenda. 

PROPOSED MOTION 
A recommended motion is: 

“I move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.” 
 

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 6 

Page 3 of 201



 
Meeting Minutes May 11, 2022 P a g e  | 1 

 

  
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

1220 Lakeway Drive 
Bellingham, WA  98229 

 

REGULAR SESSION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

Minutes 
May 11, 2022 

 
Board President Laura Abele called the Regular Session to order at 6:30 p.m.   
 
Attendees: Commissioner Laura Abele General Manager Justin Clary 
 Commissioner Todd Citron District Engineer/Assistant GM Bill Hunter 
 Commissioner John Carter Finance Manager Jenny Signs 
 Commissioner Bruce Ford Operations Manager Brent Winters 
 Commissioner Leslie McRoberts Recording Secretary Rachael Hope 
 District Legal Counsel Bob Carmichael 
  
Also in attendance were the following members of the public: 
 

• Jon Humphrey 

• Mike Belisle 

• Skakti Rebekah 

• Steven Kersey 

• Kevin Bardosh 

• Danica Thiessen 

• D.I. Feldberg 

• Martin Driscoll 

• Jana Feldberg 

• Gerri Ray 

• Elizabeth Ruff 

• Eric Prestbo 

• Ken Loveless 

• Laura Rink 

• John Neeter 

• Nicole Staron 
 
All attendees participated remotely by phone or video conferencing.  
 
Roll Call 
General Manager Justin Clary performed a roll call to identify those in attendance, and then verbally confirmed 
that the meeting was noticed in accordance with Resolution No. 859 allowing remote meeting attendance, as 
well as in compliance with current statutory requirements. It was confirmed that all participants were able to 
be heard and hear each other clearly. 
 
Public Comment 
Commissioner Abele opened the public comment period, explaining that commenters would be given 3 
minutes each to comment. Comment was received from each member of the public in attendance regarding 
the District’s lease with Dish Wireless for the construction of a cell tower on District property at 1010 Lakeview 
Street. 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 201



 
Meeting Minutes May 11, 2022 P a g e  | 2 

Additions & Changes to Agenda 
Clary requested the addition of Item 8A, Update on Puget Sound Nutrient General Permit, under Other 
Business.  The Board agreed. 
 
Clary requested the addition of Item 11: Executive Session related to legal matters following the second public 
comment opportunity. The Board agreed. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 

Action Taken 
McRoberts moved, Ford seconded, approval of: 

• Payroll for Pay Period #09 (04/16/2022 through 04/29/2022) totaling $49,005.01 

• Payroll Benefits for Pay Period #09 totaling $52,747.63 

• Minutes from the 4/27/22 Regular Board Meeting 

• Accounts Payable Vouchers totaling $173,198.29 
Motion passed. 
 

City of Bellingham Resource Recovery Project Discussion 
Clary recalled that the City of Bellingham owns and operates the Post Point Wastewater Treatment Plant, 
which receives and treats the District’s wastewater through an interlocal agreement between the City and 
District. The solids handling process equipment (including incinerators) at the facility are reaching the end of 
their useful lives and require replacement. Based upon the City’s policy for climate action and community 
feedback on various replacement options, a digestion process with energy recovery has been identified as the 
preferred solution. Since the last presentation to the Board in April 2021, the City and its consultant have been 
proceeding with design, permitting, and cost estimating associated with this project (referred to as the 
Resource Recovery Project). 
 
Based upon the community’s concern with the potential for PFAS in the compostable end product of the 
proposed digestion process, the City has held significant discussion pertaining to the current Resource 
Recovery Project, and if any additional processes should be considered to address PFAS. With the potential for 
any additional processes to increase project costs significantly relative to the already historically costly project, 
the City provided an update to the Board on the project during the Board’s April 27 meeting.  
 
Discussion followed, including the topics of liability, housing affordability, climate action goals, and operational 
costs related to the District’s portion of this project.  
 
Other Business: Update on Puget Sound Nutrient General Permit  
Clary introduced this topic, explaining that the Puget Sound Nutrient General Permit was adopted by the 
Washington Department of Ecology with a measured approach. Concerns have been raised by stakeholders, 
and District Legal Council Bob Carmichael highlighted some of the ongoing litigation and appeals. Discussion 
followed. 
 
General Manager’s Report 
Clary updated the Board on several topics, including a recent meeting with the Whatcom County Health 
Department regarding community messaging around sewage releases, upcoming Department of Health 
routine sanitary survey of the Agate Heights Water Treatment Plant, District work with the Whatcom 
Conservation District to identify considerations around wildfire resilience at District facilities, and the 
Whatcom Water Alliance rebate program. 
 

Page 5 of 201



 
Meeting Minutes May 11, 2022 P a g e  | 3 

Clary also recognized District Construction Engineer Kristin Hemenway for her dedication during issues that 
arose during the Lake Whatcom Boulevard Cure in Place Piping Improvement Project. Hemenway was on site 
with the contractor far past normal business hours representing the District with dedication and commitment.  
 
Public Comment 
Comment was received from District customers Mike Belisle, Kevin Bardosh, Eric Prestbo, and Jana Fedlberg 
regarding the District’s lease with Dish Wireless for the construction of a cell tower on District property at 1010 
Lakeview Street. 
 
Executive Session Per RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)(iii): Legal Risks/Potential Litigation – 30 Minutes 
Abele recessed the Regular Session to Executive Session at 8:20 p.m.  It was estimated that the Executive 

Session would take 30 minutes. The purpose of the Executive Session was to discuss matters related to 
litigation or legal risks of a proposed action or current practice that the agency has identified when 
public discussion of the litigation or legal risks is likely to result in an adverse legal or financial 
consequence to the agency.  
 
Abele recessed the Executive Session and reconvened the Regular Session at 8:51 p.m. No action was taken. 
 
Abele re-recessed the Regular Session to Executive Session for continuation of the same discussion at 8:51  
p.m., estimating the discussion would last an additional 30 minutes. 
 
Abele recessed the Executive Session and reconvened the Regular Session at 9:09 p.m. No action was taken. 
 
With no further business, Abele adjourned the Regular Session 9:09 p.m. 
 
 
 
        
Board President, Laura Abele 
 
 
 
Attest:                

Recording Secretary, Rachael Hope 

 

 
Minutes approved by motion at  Regular  Special Board Meeting on _________________________ 
     Date Minutes Approved 

Page 6 of 201



 
Meeting Minutes May 25, 2022 P a g e  | 1 

 

  
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

1220 Lakeway Drive 
Bellingham, WA  98229 

 

 
REGULAR SESSION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Minutes 
May 25, 2022 

 
Board President Laura Abele called the Regular Session to order at 8:00 a.m.   
 
Attendees: Commissioner Laura Abele General Manager Justin Clary 
 Commissioner Todd Citron District Engineer/Assistant GM Bill Hunter 
 Commissioner John Carter Finance Manager Jenny Signs 
 Commissioner Leslie McRoberts Operations Manager Brent Winters 
 Recording Secretary Rachael Hope District Legal Counsel Bob Carmichael 
  
Excused Absence: Commissioner Bruce Ford 
 
Also in attendance were: 
 

• Rich Munson, District Employee 

• Kevin Cook, District Employee 

• Brian Smith, Wilson Engineering 

• Curt Shoenfelder, Wilson Engineering 

• Kevin Bardosh, public 

• Joe O’Keefe, public 

• Eric Prestbo, public 

• One observation only attendee 
 
All attendees participated remotely by phone or video conferencing.  
 
Roll Call 
General Manager Justin Clary performed a roll call to identify those in attendance, and then verbally confirmed 
that the meeting was noticed in accordance with Resolution No. 859 allowing remote meeting attendance, as 
well as in compliance with current statutory requirements. It was confirmed that all participants were able to 
be heard and hear each other clearly. 
 
Public Comment 
Commissioner Abele opened the public comment period, limiting individual comments to 2 minutes. She also 
informed the public that the Board does not respond during public comment periods, and all items 
commented on are on the docket for future meeting agendas.   
 
General Manager Justin Clary and District Legal Council Bob Carmichael shared a brief update on the status of 
the District’s potential lease with Dish Wireless. 
 

Page 7 of 201



 
Meeting Minutes May 25, 2022 P a g e  | 2 

Public comment was received from District constituents Kevin Bardosh and Eric Prestbo regarding the Dish 
Wireless cell tower lease, and from District constituent Joe O’Keefe regarding the Division 7 Reservoir 
Replacement project. 
 
Additions & Changes to Agenda 
Clary stated that staff reports may be limited depending on length of time used for business items in order to 
allow for executive session at the end of the meeting. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 

Action Taken 
Carter moved, Citron seconded, approval of: 

• Payroll for Pay Period #10 (04/30/2022 through 05/13/2022) totaling $46,735.34 

• Payroll Benefits for Pay Period #10 totaling $53,294.44 

• Accounts Payable Vouchers totaling $99,918.04 
Motion passed. 
 

Division 7 Reservoir Seismic Upgrade and ShakeAlert Implementation Project Briefing #1 
Hunter explained that following a 2016 Reservoir Seismic Vulnerability Assessment of all five of the District’s 
welded steel reservoirs completed by BHC Consultants, the Division 7 Reservoir was identified as the highest 
priority for retrofit or replacement. In 2017, a system-wide reservoir capacity analysis found that the Division 7 
Reservoir is oversized. Wilson Engineering LLC prepared a technical memoranda dated February 8, 2018 that 
analyzed options to perform seismic retrofits to the existing reservoir, or replace it with one or two new 
smaller reservoirs. The analysis concluded two new smaller reservoirs provided a significant advantage over 
retrofitting the existing reservoir.  
 
In 2021, the District was notified of the receipt of a Hazard Mitigation Grant for the project with cost sharing as 
follows: FEMA 75%, Washington State Emergency Management Division (WA-EMD) 12.5%, and Lake Whatcom 
Water and Sewer District 12.5%. The FEMA grant funding is split into two phases: Phase 1 – Design/Permitting; 
and Phase 2 – Construction. Phase 1 is in progress with the goal to complete in 2022.  
 
Curt Schoenfelder of Wilson Engineering gave a presentation, including project background, system operation, 
and proposed changes, project timeline, and construction costs. This briefing also included information on 
predesign and tank sizing efforts completed to date. Discussion followed. 
 
City of Bellingham Resource Recovery Project Discussion 
Clary recalled that City of Bellingham owns and operates the Post Point Wastewater Treatment Plant, which 
receives and treats the District’s wastewater through an interlocal agreement between the City and District. 
The solids handling process equipment (including incinerators) at the facility are reaching the end of their 
useful lives and require replacement. Based upon the City’s policy for climate action and community feedback 
on various replacement options, a digestion process with energy recovery has been identified as the preferred 
solution. Since the last presentation to the Board in April 2021, the City and its consultant have been 
proceeding with design, permitting, and cost estimating associated with this project (referred to as the 
Resource Recovery Project). 
 
Based upon the community’s concern with the potential for PFAS in the compostable end product of the 
proposed digestion process, the City has held significant discussion pertaining to the current Resource 
Recovery Project, and if any additional processes should be considered to address PFAS. With the potential for 
any additional processes to increase project costs significantly relative to the already historically costly project, 

Page 8 of 201



 
Meeting Minutes May 25, 2022 P a g e  | 3 

the City provided an update to the Board on the project during the Board’s April 27 meeting and the Board 
subsequently discussed the District’s position on the project during its May 11 meeting. During the May 11 
meeting, the Board directed staff to draft a letter to the City of Bellingham for the Board’s consideration during 
its May 25 meeting. This letter was presented for Board approval. 
 

Action Taken 
Citron moved, McRoberts seconded, to authorize the issuance of the letter the City of Bellingham 
providing District comment pertaining to the City’s proposed Post Point Resource Recovery 
Project as presented. Motion passed. 

 
Public Comment 
Public comment was received from District constituent Joe O’Keefe regarding the Division 7 Reservoir 
Replacement project. 
 
Executive Session Per RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)(iii): Legal Risks/Potential Litigation – 30 Minutes 
Abele recessed the Regular Session to Executive Session at 9:31 a.m.  It was estimated that the Executive 

Session would take 30 minutes. The purpose of the Executive Session was to discuss matters related to 
litigation or legal risks of a proposed action or current practice that the agency has identified when 
public discussion of the litigation or legal risks is likely to result in an adverse legal or financial 
consequence to the agency.  
 
Commissioner Abele was excused from the meeting at 10:00 a.m. due to prior commitments, and 
Commissioner Citron stepped in as chair. 
 
Citron recessed the Executive Session and reconvened the Regular Session at 10:12 a.m. No action was taken. 
 
Citron re-recessed the Regular Session to Executive Session for continuation of the same discussion at 10:12 
a.m., estimating the discussion would last an additional 10 minutes. 
 
Citron recessed the Executive Session and reconvened the Regular Session at 10:22 a.m. No action was taken. 
 
Citron re-recessed the Regular Session to Executive Session for continuation of the same discussion at 10:22 
a.m., estimating the discussion would last an additional 20 minutes. 
 
Citron recessed the Executive Session and reconvened the Regular Session at 10:39 a.m. No action was taken. 
 
With no further business, Citron adjourned the Regular Session at 10:39 a.m. 
 
 
        
Board President, Laura Abele 
 
 
Attest:                

Recording Secretary, Rachael Hope 

 

 
Minutes approved by motion at  Regular  Special Board Meeting on _________________________ 
     Date Minutes Approved 

Page 9 of 201



 
Meeting Minutes May 26, 2022 P a g e  | 1 

 

  
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

1220 Lakeway Drive 
Bellingham, WA  98229 

 

 
SPECIAL SESSION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Minutes 
May 26, 2022 

 
Board President Laura Abele called the Special Session to order at 6:00 p.m.   
 
Attendees: Commissioner Laura Abele General Manager Justin Clary 
 Commissioner Todd Citron District Engineer/Assistant GM Bill Hunter 
 Commissioner John Carter District Legal Counsel Bob Carmichael 
 Commissioner Bruce Ford  
 Commissioner Leslie McRoberts  
  
No public were in attendance. All attendees participated remotely by phone or video conferencing.  
 

Action Taken 
McRoberts moved, Citron seconded, entering an Executive session. Motion passed. 

 
Executive Session Per RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)(iii): Legal Risks/Potential Litigation – 240 Minutes 
Abele recessed the Special Session to Executive Session at 6:04 p.m.  It was estimated that the Executive 

Session would take 240 minutes. The purpose of the Executive Session was to discuss matters related to 
litigation or legal risks of a proposed action or current practice that the agency has identified when 
public discussion of the litigation or legal risks is likely to result in an adverse legal or financial 
consequence to the agency.  
 
Abele recessed the Executive Session and reconvened the Special Session at 7:47 p.m. No action was taken. 
 
With no further business, Abele adjourned the Special Session 7:47 p.m. 
 
 
        
Board President, Laura Abele 
 
 
Attest:                

Recording Secretary, Rachael Hope 

 

 
Minutes approved by motion at  Regular  Special Board Meeting on _________________________ 
     Date Minutes Approved 

Page 10 of 201



Page 11 of 201



Page 12 of 201



Page 13 of 201



 

  
Eagleridge Water Booster Station 

Conversion Project Discussion 

DATE SUBMITTED:  June 2, 2022 MEETING DATE: June 8, 2022 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM:  Justin Clary, General Manager 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 

1. Pressure Contour Map with District-recorded 
Pressures during May 18 Test 

2. Eagleridge HOA Test Response Packet 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONAL

/OTHER 
 

 

BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 
The Eagleridge neighborhood, located within the District’s service area, is a subdivision of 
63 single family residential homes situated on the north shore of Lake Whatcom just 
outside of Bellingham city limits. The District provides water service to Eagleridge residents 
via an intertie with the City of Bellingham’s water system. The neighborhood’s water and 
sewer infrastructure was constructed by the private developer of the subdivision in 1988 
and dedicated to the District. 

The Eagleridge Water System is classified as a Group A water system regulated by the 
Washington State Department of Health (DOH) and serves the entire Eagleridge 
neighborhood, as well as seven homes located immediately north of Donald Avenue (70 
total homes). When the water system was originally designed and constructed, the City’s 
water pressure at the location of the connection (intertie) between the two systems was 
not sufficient to serve the Eagleridge neighborhood. As a result, a booster pump station 
was constructed at the location of the intertie (2029 Northshore Road) that consists of a 
CMU (concrete masonry unit) building that houses three pumps for domestic (general) 
water service, two pumps for fire suppression, pump controls, and an auxiliary diesel 
generator (to ensure continuous water service throughout power outages). 

At some point between infrastructure construction in 1988 and 2016, the City increased 
the water pressure in the service area the feeds the Eagleridge water system. During this 
same timeframe, the District began planning for replacement of the pump control system, 
which was approaching the end of its useful life. Based on this, a project was identified in 
the District’s most recent Water System Comprehensive Plan update (approved by DOH in 
2018) to study whether part or all of the pump station could be decommissioned. In 2020, 
the District requested that Wilson Engineering perform a detailed hydraulic analysis to 

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 7.A 

Page 14 of 201



determine if the City’s system pressure on their side of the intertie is sufficient to meet 
regulatory requirements in the Eagleridge system (Washington Administrative Code 246-
290-230 requires that Group A water systems provide a minimum of 30 pounds per square 
inch [psi] pressure at service water meters). 

Wilson Engineering’s hydraulic analysis concluded that the domestic pumps are no longer 
necessary and can be removed from service, with the City’s pressure being sufficient to 
meet regulatory requirements for the domestic demands of the Eagleridge system. 
However, the fire pumps must remain, as the analysis found that the City pressures were 
not sufficient to deliver the minimum required flow and pressure in a fire flow scenario. 
The hydraulic analysis did, however, find that the existing fire pumps are oversized, and 
concluded that the existing pump control valves for the fire pumps should be modified to 
add a pressure reducing function. 

District Design and Construction Standards, as well as the District’s Administrative Code 
establish a District-wide policy to provide a minimum of 30 psi under peak hour demand at 
all water meters. The intent of this policy is to meet minimum design criteria defined in the 
“Water System Design Manual” published by the DOH and WAC Chapter 246-290. Based 
upon this policy, the District submitted a report to DOH in August 2021 seeking approval 
for removal of the domestic pumps. DOH granted project approval in November 2021. 
With the District’s determination that system pressures meet current District policy and 
DOH’s approval of the project, the District then provided outreach to Eagleridge system 
customers via a letter dated December 6, 2021.  

Since issuance of the December 6 letter, there has been ongoing dialogue with Eagleridge 
customers regarding the impacts of the proposed project. The Board has discussed the 
project during a regularly scheduled meeting held on January 12, a work session held on 
February 9, and a regularly scheduled meeting held on April 13.  

Following discussion with the Eagleridge customers, the District and many of the 
customers participated in a water pressure test on May 18. The test consisted of shutting 
off the booster pump station and bypassing the pumps between 3:00 and 7:00 p.m. as a 
means of simulating water system conditions should the domestic pumps ultimately be 
removed. The purpose of the test was to: 1) allow the District to check pressures at various 
locations in the water system to confirm the validity of the hydraulic model, and 2) provide 
customers both quantitative (read the pressure at their home with a gauge) and qualitative 
(see how showers, faucets, sprinkler system, etc. function) information specific to their 
home. 

During the test, the District recorded pressures throughout the test at three locations: at 
the booster station, at blow-off located adjacent to 1735 Eagleridge Drive, and at a fire 
hydrant located adjacent to 1724 Donald Avenue. District staff also spot-checked pressures 
at several water meters. The previously presented Water Pressure Contour Map is 
attached, with District-recorded water pressures superimposed. Pressures recorded 
aligned with the hydraulic model of the public water system, confirming its validity. 

Page 15 of 201

https://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=246-290-230
https://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=246-290-230


Many Eagleridge customers participated in the test, recording their observations (both 
quantitative and qualitative on forms developed by the HOA). Attached is the packet 
submitted by the HOA, which also includes responses received from customers located on 
Donald Avenue (including a letter from Mr. Rosenburg summarizing all Donald Avenue 
customer pressure impacts). Numeric pressures recorded by the customers varied in 
relation to anticipated pressures on the contour map (some were consistent with the map, 
while others deviated significantly). Potential reasons for the deviations could have been: 
issues within the private system (such as PRV malfunction); recording pressures with 
multiple fixtures open/operating; inaccurate gauges (District staff noted a 7 psi difference 
at one customer’s hose bib between District gauge readings and the customer’s gauge 
reading); or operator error. Regardless, the more critical issue for the District is addressing 
customer perception regarding a drop in pressure from which they have grown 
accustomed to (and made investments in their home appliances and systems around).  

Prior Board discussion has included an analysis of a variety of potential alternatives 
associated with the project. Based upon past discussion, the alternatives have been 
winnowed down to three primary options: 

1) Implement the Proposed Project (domestic pump removal) 
2) Incorporate Pump System Replacement into the 6-Year Capital Improvement 

Program (funded by the Water Utility System Reinvestment Fund) 
3) Incorporate Pump System Replacement into the 6-Year Capital Improvement 

Program (funded by a rate surcharge placed on benefiting customers) 

Alternative 1 
Domestic pump removal is the most readily implementable option with engineering and 
permitting being complete and the project constructable by District staff. It is also the 
lowest cost option (both capital and long-term operational) and aligns with the District’s 
goal of Operational Optimization (removes workload obligations and operational costs 
associated with the pumps). However, from a customer satisfaction perspective, the 
pressure test feedback received overwhelming aligns with a desire to have current 
pressures maintained (even for several customers in the lower elevations of the water 
system that would still have relatively high pressures). In addition, there would most 
certainly be an impact to those in higher elevations of the system, as many would need to 
install and maintain private booster pump systems and associated appurtenances to 
maintain desired pressures. 

Alternative 2 
Booster pump system replacement would allow for maintenance of water system 
pressures that Eagleridge customers are accustomed to and align with the desires voiced 
by many since December (and most recently through the test day responses). The project 
cost would need to be incorporated into the 6-year CIP, thus bumping prior prioritized 
water system investments (with approximately $250,000/year dedicated to water system 
reinvestment projects, and required FEMA grant match obligations consuming the majority 
of reinvestment funds, there is a risk of project implementation being scheduled after 
system failure). Consideration of precedent setting should also be considered—District 

Page 16 of 201



financing of a capital improvement project that provides a level-of-service benefit in excess 
of District policy (and service currently provided to other portions of the District) could 
result in District financing of other future projects requested by specific areas/populations 
of the District. 

Alternative 3 
Alternative 3 benefits largely align with those summarized in Alternative 2 above. Though 
the District would need to finance the upfront costs of pump system replacement, the 
improvement would be financed by the benefiting customers, thus removing policy 
precedent setting issues identified associated with Alternative 2.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
The estimated cost to retrofit the fire pumps and replace the domestic pumps is $156,000 
($130,000 for construction/equipment with a 20 percent multiplier for engineering design), 
with operational costs of the 20-year planning horizon being $50,000. The estimated cost 
to retrofit the fire pumps and remove the domestic pumps is $13,000 with no associated 
operational costs anticipated. Therefore, removal of the domestic pumps would save the 
water utility approximately $143,000 in near-term capital costs and $50,000 in operational 
costs over the next 20 years. 

APPLICABLE EFFECTIVE UTILITY MANAGEMENT ATTRIBUTE(S) 
Product Quality 
Customer Satisfaction 
Operational Optimization 
Financial Viability 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
Implementation of the proposed project, while it aligns with operational optimization 
objectives, is inconsistent with customer desires. On the other hand, requiring all 
ratepayers to finance a project that provides a level-of-service above and beyond the level-
of-service currently provided to other portions of the District may create a policy precedent 
with significant future financial impacts. Therefore, the recommended action is to 
authorize pump system replacement, but in a manner that allows that those benefiting in 
excess of current District policy finance the improvement. 

PROPOSED MOTION 
If the Board wishes to proceed with direction during the June 8 meeting, following are 
possible motions that may be used, dependent upon the Board-defined approach forward. 

“I move to authorize District staff to proceed with implementation of the 
Eagleridge Booster Station Conversion project, as approved by the Washington 
State Department of Health.” 

Page 17 of 201



“I move that replacement of the Eagleridge pump system be included in the 
District’s 6-year Capital Improvement Program during development of the next 
District budget.” 

“I move that replacement of the Eagleridge pump system be included in the 
District’s 6-year Capital Improvement Program during development of the next 
District budget, and that staff develop a surcharge to finance the pump system 
replacement that will be placed on Eagleridge water system customers for Board 
consideration that is consistent with applicable state statutes.” 

 

Page 18 of 201



Page 19 of 201

justin.clary
Callout
40.5 psi

justin.clary
Callout
42 psi

justin.clary
Callout
68 psi

justin.clary
Callout
52 psi

justin.clary
Callout
46 psi

justin.clary
Callout
70-75 psi

justin.clary
Callout
45-52 psi

justin.clary
Callout
34-42 psi

justin.clary
Text Box
District-recorded water pressures during May 18, 2022 test (w/o pumps operating)

justin.clary
Callout
75 psi



20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

110.0

120.0

W
AT

ER
 P

RE
SS

U
RE

 (P
SI

)

TIME

EAGLERIDGE WATER SYSTEM | WATER PRESSURE TEST EVENT

BOOSTER PUMP STATION

1735 EAGLERIDGE DR

1724 DONALD AVE

May 18, 2022

PRESSURE TEST PERIOD 3PM TO 7PM
(WITH EAGLERIDGE BOOSTER STATION PUMPS TURNED OFF)

LEGEND
PRESSURE READ 

LOCATION

Page 20 of 201



Page 21 of 201



Page 22 of 201



Page 23 of 201



Page 24 of 201



Page 25 of 201



Page 26 of 201



Page 27 of 201



Page 28 of 201



Page 29 of 201



Page 30 of 201



Page 31 of 201



Page 32 of 201



Page 33 of 201



Page 34 of 201



Page 35 of 201



Page 36 of 201



Page 37 of 201



Page 38 of 201



Page 39 of 201



Page 40 of 201



Page 41 of 201



Page 42 of 201



Page 43 of 201



Page 44 of 201



Page 45 of 201



Page 46 of 201



Page 47 of 201



Page 48 of 201



Page 49 of 201



Page 50 of 201



Page 51 of 201



Page 52 of 201



Page 53 of 201



Page 54 of 201



Page 55 of 201



Page 56 of 201



Page 57 of 201



Page 58 of 201



Page 59 of 201



Page 60 of 201



Page 61 of 201



Page 62 of 201



Page 63 of 201



Page 64 of 201



Page 65 of 201



Page 66 of 201



Page 67 of 201



Page 68 of 201



Page 69 of 201



Page 70 of 201



Page 71 of 201



Page 72 of 201



Page 73 of 201



Page 74 of 201



Page 75 of 201



Page 76 of 201



Page 77 of 201



Page 78 of 201



Page 79 of 201



Page 80 of 201



Page 81 of 201



Page 82 of 201



Page 83 of 201



Page 84 of 201



Page 85 of 201



Page 86 of 201



Page 87 of 201



Page 88 of 201



Page 89 of 201



Page 90 of 201



Page 91 of 201



Page 92 of 201



Page 93 of 201



Page 94 of 201



Page 95 of 201



Page 96 of 201



Page 97 of 201



Page 98 of 201



Page 99 of 201



Page 100 of 201



Page 101 of 201



Page 102 of 201



Page 103 of 201



Page 104 of 201



Page 105 of 201



Page 106 of 201



Page 107 of 201



Page 108 of 201



Page 109 of 201



Page 110 of 201



Page 111 of 201



Page 112 of 201



Page 113 of 201



Page 114 of 201



Page 115 of 201



Page 116 of 201



Page 117 of 201



Page 118 of 201



Page 119 of 201



Page 120 of 201



Page 121 of 201



Page 122 of 201



Page 123 of 201



Page 124 of 201



Page 125 of 201



Page 126 of 201



Page 127 of 201



Page 128 of 201



Page 129 of 201



Page 130 of 201



Page 131 of 201



Page 132 of 201



Page 133 of 201



Page 134 of 201



Page 135 of 201



Page 136 of 201



Page 137 of 201



Page 138 of 201



Page 139 of 201



Page 140 of 201



Page 141 of 201



Page 142 of 201



Page 143 of 201



Page 144 of 201



Page 145 of 201



Page 146 of 201



Page 147 of 201



Page 148 of 201



Page 149 of 201



Page 150 of 201



Page 151 of 201



Page 152 of 201



Page 153 of 201



Page 154 of 201



Page 155 of 201



Page 156 of 201



Page 157 of 201



Page 158 of 201



Page 159 of 201



Page 160 of 201



Page 161 of 201



Page 162 of 201



Page 163 of 201



Page 164 of 201



Page 165 of 201



Page 166 of 201



Page 167 of 201



Page 168 of 201



Page 169 of 201



Page 170 of 201



Page 171 of 201



Page 172 of 201



Page 173 of 201



Page 174 of 201



Page 175 of 201



Page 176 of 201



Page 177 of 201



Page 178 of 201



Page 179 of 201



Page 180 of 201



Page 181 of 201



Page 182 of 201



Page 183 of 201



Page 184 of 201



Page 185 of 201



Page 186 of 201



Page 187 of 201



Page 188 of 201



Page 189 of 201



Page 190 of 201



Page 191 of 201



Page 192 of 201



Page 193 of 201



Page 194 of 201



Page 195 of 201



Page 196 of 201



Page 197 of 201



 

  

General Manager’s 
Report 

 

DATE SUBMITTED:  June 02, 2022 MEETING DATE: June 08, 2022 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM:  Justin Clary, General Manager 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 1. General Manager’s Report 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONAL

/OTHER 
 

 
BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 
Updated information from the General Manager in advance of the Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
None required. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
None. 

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 9.A 

Page 198 of 201



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT PAGE 1 

LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 

 

 

  
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

General Manager’s Report 
Upcoming Dates & Announcements 

Regular Meeting – Wednesday, June 8, 2022 – 6:30 p.m. 

Important Upcoming Dates 

Lake Whatcom Water & Sewer District 

Regular Board Meeting Wed June 29, 2022 8:00 a.m. Remote Attendance 

Employee Staff Meeting Thu June 9, 2022 8:00 a.m. 
Remote Attendance 
Commissioner Abele to attend 

Investment Comm. Meeting Wed Jul 27, 2022 10:00 a.m. Remote Attendance 

Safety Committee Meeting Thu June 23, 2022 8:00 a.m. Remote Attendance 

Lake Whatcom Management Program 

Policy Group Meeting Wed Sep 7, 2022 3:00 p.m. Remote Attendance 

Joint Councils Meeting March 2023 TBD TBD 

Other Meetings 

WASWD Section III Meeting Tue June 14, 2022 6:15 p.m. 
Bob’s Burgers, 8822 Quil Ceda 
Pkwy, Tulalip, WA 

Whatcom Water Districts 
Caucus Meeting 

Wed June 15, 2022 2:00 p.m. Remote Attendance 

Whatcom County Council of 
Governments Board Meeting 

Wed Oct 12, 2022 3:00 p.m. Remote Attendance 

Committee Meeting Reports 

Safety Committee: 
➢ No committee meeting has been held since last board meeting. 

Investment Committee: 
➢ No committee meeting has been held since last board meeting. 

Upcoming Board Meeting Topics 

➢ Biennial budget discussion 
➢ Lakewood/Rocky Ridge Sewer Lift Stations Improvement project presentation 
➢ Division 7 Reservoir Replacement project presentation (No. 2) 
➢ Commissioner Protocol Manual review 
➢ Glen Cove Water Association consolidation 
➢ DISH Wireless proposed cell tower public hearing/resolution consideration 

  

Page 199 of 201



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT PAGE 2 

LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 

 

2022 Initiatives Status 

Administration and Operations 

Capital Improvement Project Financing Plan 
➢ Develop a financial plan that proactively prepares the District for significant capital projects on 

the near-term horizon while maintaining Board-defined operational levels-of-service. 
The board adopted an updated rate structure in 2021 and a review of general facilities charges is 
underway, both of which incorporate anticipated CIP costs over the next decade. Related efforts 
include meeting with Cathi Read of the state Department of Commerce’s Small Communities 
Initiative to discuss funding strategies, application for a FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant for the 
Sudden Valley WTP chlorine contact basin replacement; and ongoing dialogue with city of 
Bellingham staff regarding financing the Post Point WWTP resource recovery project. 

General Facilities Charges Review 
➢ Conduct a review of District water and sewer general facilities (connection) charges (GFCs) to 

ensure appropriate fees are being assessed to new development. 
Project kick-off presentation was provided during the April 27 meeting; staff are compiling data 
for the consultant. 

Records Management System Overhaul 
➢ Complete transition of the District’s current records management system to a more robust 

system that ensures compliance with statutory requirements and gains efficiencies in document 
management. 
A District-consultant meeting was held on April 28. The next step is to develop a procurement 
plan for records management software.  

Safety Program Update 
➢ Continue systematic review and revision of District’s safety programs by updating nine programs 

in 2022. 
The safety committee has finalized updates to four programs (PPE, safety responsibilities, and 
slips, trips and falls, and the heat-related illness) and is currently reviewing the respiratory 
protection program. 

Capital Improvement Program Support 
➢ Support the Engineering Department through management of specific capital improvement 

project(s). 
The general manger is managing the Eagleridge Water Booster Station Conversion (District 
Project No. C2011) and Division 30 Reservoir Hazardous Tree Removal (District Project No. 
M2226) projects, and completed the Commissioner Boundary update (District Project No. 
A2116). 

Emergency Response/System Security 

Emergency Readiness 
➢ Re-engage with Whatcom County Department of Emergency Management to hold tabletop 

emergency response exercises, as well as a field exercise (pandemic-dependent). 
District held a tabletop exercise May 25 at the Whatcom County Division of Emergency 
Management facility—topic was cybersecurity awareness. 
Whatcom Conservation District staff conducted facility audits (SVWTP, Division 30 reservoir, 
Beaver sewer lift station) on May 16 regarding wildfire resilience preparedness. Lessons learned 
will be applied to other District facilities. 

Page 200 of 201



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT PAGE 3 

LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 

 

Cybersecurity Assessment 
➢ Hire an IT-service provider to perform a third-party assessment of the District’s vulnerability to 

cybercriminal attack. 
To be initiated. 

Community/Public Relations 

General 
➢ Website 

The District’s web content is reviewed and updated on a regular basis. 
➢ Social Media 

Posts are made to District Facebook and LinkedIn pages regularly; Nextdoor is regularly 
monitored for District-related posts. 

➢ Press Releases 
Press releases were issued on March 2 (commissioner redistricting public hearing) and March 21 
(sewage overflow at North Point lift station). 

Intergovernmental Relations 
➢ J Clary attended meeting with Representative Rule and Senator Sefzik at the Birch Bay Water and 

Sewer District facilities on May 24. 

Lake Whatcom Water Quality 

Lake Whatcom Management Program 
➢ Participate in meetings of Lake Whatcom Management Program partners. 

J Clary attended a meeting a meeting regarding Lake Whatcom TMDL modeling with LWMP 
members on May 24 and the Policy Group meeting on June 1. 

Onsite Septic System Conversion Program 
➢ Pursue connection of the one remaining septic-served parcel located within 200 feet of District 

sewer system identified in the memorandum to the Board dated April 9, 2020. 
To be initiated. 

Page 201 of 201


	00 - Virtual Meeting Access Info
	01 - Agenda
	06 - Consent Agenda
	06.1 - 2022.05.11 Minutes
	06.2 - 2022.05.25 Minutes
	06.3 - 2022.05.26 Minutes
	06.4 - Payroll & Benefits
	7.A - Eagleridge Booster Project Discussion
	7.A.1 - Pressure Contour Map w LWWSD Data
	7.A.2 - Eagleridge HOA Test Response Packet
	02 Additional Information Provided in Binder
	03 Pump Shutdown Summary (HOA)
	04 Map - Total Homes in Test
	05 Map - Homes 18 - 45 psi
	06 18-29 psi - Maps, Info, and Comments
	07 30-39 psi - Maps, Info, and Comments
	08 40-49 psi - Maps, Info, and Comments
	09 52-70 psi - Maps, Info, and Comments
	10 Unrecorded psi - Maps, Info, and Comments

	09 - Managers Report
	09.1 - General Manager's Report

